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Questions: 
 

1.  IFB-Introduction, Section 3.1, Review Process: Are the amounts added for Local SBE 
(8%), and Transitional Job Opportunities (5%), for qualifications purposes only? 

2. IFB-Appendix A, Section 5.0, Hours/Day of Work: Are rainy days considered closure 
days? 

3. Are fixed signs identifying the locations allowed on locations for businesses if they are 
removable? If not, what is allowed to notify public of available services? 

4. How is lessee supposed to remove trash if there are no trash receptacles at the 
locations? Would the County approve lessee to provide them with responsibility to empty 
them? 

5. Is there a specific county formula to determine the amount of rent for additional items, if 
any? Is there a specific County formula to determine the amount of rent for additional 
items, if any? How has this been determined for other contractors? What is the length of 
the approval process? 
 

6. What is the schedule for awarding of bid?  

7. Please clarify on whether the mobile food locations are for food trucks or rolling “hot dog” 
style vendor? 

8. What is the annual rent the incumbent concessionaires are paying for the Concession 
Premises? 

9. Please provide the financial statements for the Concession Premises for the current 
license term (2009-2013). Does the financial data for the Venice Beach concession 
contain data for all three locations that comprise the Premises? 

10. Are the incumbent concessions open from beyond the mandatory days/hours of 
operation from Memorial Day to Labor Day? Has the mandatory days/hours of operation 
changed during the current license term? 
 

11. Please confirm the minimum bid amounts for the Concession Premises. 
 

12. Why was the residential real estate CPI index chosen for adjusting the annual rent? 
 

13. How do the options affect the formula for tax since it is based upon the actual rent with 
the beginning year being very high and lowers towards the end of the license? Please 
give an official County Assessor response. 
 

14. Are there any plans over the next 10 years on the beaches for any capital projects or 
any construction or closures that will affect any of the concessions? 
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15. What responsibility does the County have regarding homelessness encampment and 

defecation around the locations? What is the time frame for response? How can a 
Licensee be compliant if there are delays in dealing with problems? 
 

16. What trade fixtures are included in the Premises? 
 

17. Do you have a Frequently Asked Questions sheet? 
 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
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Answers: 
 

1. Introduction, Subparagraph 3.1, Review Process, allows for an upward adjustment to the 
proposed annual rent submitted by qualified bidders. This adjustment is for the Selection 
Process only and does not impact the concession rent amount. 
 

2. Please refer to Appendix A, Paragraph 5.0, Hours/Day of Work: 

“The Licensee shall engage in the Authorized Activity from the Premises every day from 
Memorial Day Weekend (except for the commencement year for which the Authorized 
Activity shall start on May 1, 2014), through Labor Day Weekend of each year during the 
License Term, except when a condition exists which is beyond the control of the 
Licensee, including but not limited to fire, earthquake, flood, storm, war, riot or 
insurrection, or other similar event that prevents the Licensee from engaging in the 
Authorized Activity from the Premises.” 

3. Please refer to Appendix A, Paragraph, 18.0, Signs: 

“Except as otherwise provided herein, Licensee shall not post signs or advertising matter 
upon the Concession Premises or improvements thereon or adjacent areas, unless prior 
approval therefore is first obtain from the Director.  All purchases and installations of 
authorized signs or advertising shall be at Licensee’s cost.” 

4. Please refer to Appendix A, Subparagraph 16.3: 

“Licensee shall arrange, at Licensee’s own expense, for pick-up of trash and garbage 
from trash areas on the Premises. Licensee shall furnish trash receptacles and have 
them emptied as frequently as necessary. Licensee shall place all trash inside of the 
cans and place lids in a closed position. Licensee shall be responsible for cleaning trash 
cans and providing trash can-liners. Licensee shall provide, at Licensee’s own expense, 
both a trash bin for refuse removal and a separate means of removal of cooking oil from 
the Premises, subject to Director’s approval.” 

5. Please refer to Appendix A, Subparagraph 9.1.3: 

“The Director’s consent may be conditioned upon the payment of additional rent or other 
considerations.” 
 

6. Please refer to Introduction, Subparagraph 1.11, License Term: 

“It is further anticipated that the License shall become effective on the later of May 1, 
2014, or approval by the Board of Supervisors.“ 
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7. The IFB offers two mobile food concessions, Royal Palms Beach and Malibu Surfrider. 

The Royal Palms Beach concession is limited to a Mobile Food Preparation Unit 
(MFPU), and the Malibu Surfrider concession is limited to a Food Service Cart (FSC). 
 
A MFPU may be a food truck. A FSC may be a hot dog cart. 
 
The respective definitions of a MFPU and FSC are found in Appendix A, Paragraph 2.0, 
Definitions, as follows: 
 
MFPU: "Any vehicle upon which ready-to-eat food is prepared, cooked, wrapped, 
packaged, or proportioned for service, sale or distribution”. 
 
FSC: "A mobile food cart [in] which limited food preparation occurs and can include hot 
dog, espresso/cappuccino, popcorn, churro/pretzel, and prepackaged food carts." 
 
Please refer to the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health, Environmental 
Health, website http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/eh/SSE/Vehicle_Inspection/vip.htm for 
further information, including permitting. 
 

8. Please refer to the attached schedule “Concessions-Annual Rent  2013-2014”. 
 

9. Please refer to the attached schedule “Financial Data” which shows all available data. 
The Venice Beach financial data includes data from all three locations that comprise the 
Premises.  
 

10. Please refer to Introduction, Subparagraph 1.12, Days of Operation. The Department 
does not track the days and hours of operation outside the mandatory days and hours. 
The Director has the right to change the mandatory operational days and hours; the 
Director did not act on this right during the current license term. 
 

11. Please refer to Introduction, Subparagraph 2.10.3, Forms, as revised in Addendum 
Three. The Minimum Bid for each Concession Premises is listed in the schedule. 
 

12. Please refer to Appendix A, Paragraph 6.9. 
 
“The index (“Index”) used for determining the annual rent adjustment shall be the United 
States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, “Consumer Price Index-all 
Urban Consumers”, “Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County, CA”, area, “Rent of Primary 
Residence” item, based period 1982-84=100, not seasonally adjusted.” 
 
This is the Index that has been used in previous Beach Concessions and Burton Chace 
Park concession licenses and for consistency it is continuing to be used. Information on 
the Index can be found at http://www.bls.gov/data/. Please refer to attached “Bureau of 
Labor Statistics Data” printout showing the Index for the period 2010 to 2013. 
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13. Please refer to Appendix A, Subparagraph 24.4, Taxes and Assessments.  

“The property described herein shall be subject to possessory interest taxation or 
assessment thereon…” 

Prospective Bidders are advised to contact the County Assessor’s Office for all queries 
relating to Possessory Interest, at http://assessor.lacounty.gov/. 

14. Please refer to the attached schedule, “Projects That May Impact Beach Concessions 
2014-2024”. 
 

15. Please refer to Appendix A, Subparagraph 16.1. 
 
“Licensee shall keep Premises and the area within a distance of fifty (50) feet from the 
Premises clean and free from offensive matter…” 
 
“Because of environmental concerns, hosing or power cleaning resulting in water runoff 
to exterior surfaces, including beach areas, may only be carried out after receipt of 
written approval from the Department.” 
 
Licensee shall contact the responsible agency for any concerns or authorizations that 
may arise during the License term. For homelessness, please contact the areas Sheriff’s 
Department or Public Health Department. For items related to the Department of 
Beaches and Harbors, please contact Los Angeles County Department of Beaches and 
Harbors, Asset Management Division, 13837 Fiji Way, Marina del Rey, CA 90292, attn: 
Beach Concessions. Phone 310-305-9503. Office hours are Monday through Thursday, 
from 7:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. 
 

16. Please refer to attached schedule, “County-Owned Trade Fixtures”. 
 

17. Please refer to attached “Answers to Frequently Asked Questions”. 
 
 

 



Type Concession Premises
Annual Rent

2013-2014

Mobile Food Facilities Malibu Surfrider $5,226

Mobile Food Facilities Royal Palm Beach $1,254

Concession Stand Burton Chace Park $8,361

Concession Stand Manhattan Beach $31,355

Concession Stand Torrance Beach $18,186

Concession Stand Will Rodgers Beach (Chautauqua) N/A

Concession Stand Will Rogers Beach (Temescal) $39,300

Concession Stand Zuma (Lot 2) $38,149

Concession Stand Zuma Beach (Lot 5) $38,149

Concession Stand Dockweiler Beach (Bluff Lot) $7,839

Bike & Skate Rentals Venice Beach $209,035

Bike & Skate Rentals Dockweiler Beach (Kilgore-Lot 2) $5,853

Hang Gliding Dockweiler Beach (Bluff Lot) $4,390

IFB Beach Concessions 2014

Concessions-Annual Rent

2013-2014
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY  

 DEPARTMENT OF BEACHS AND HARBORS 

INVITATION FOR BIDS  

FOR CONCESSION SERVICES AT COUNTY OWNED AND OPERATED  

BEACHES AND BURTON CHACE PARK 



Burton Chace Park, Marina del Rey-Concession Stand

Financial Data 2012
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Dockweiler Beach (Bluff Lot)-Concession Stand

Financial Data 2012



INCOME

Gross Sales

Costs of Good Sold
Gross income

EXPENSES

Advertising
Car Expenses
Insurance
Legal and Professional
Office Expense
Rent
Taxes and Licenses
Utilities
Wages
Cell Phone
Promotional Activities
Equipment
Outside Services

$626S6.0o
C$19A77.00)
$43,179.00

Surfside Grill
Profit and Loss 1, 2010 thru November 30, 2010

6 months

$378.00
$1,744.00
$1,890.00

$727.00
$335.00

$12,898.00
$1,960.00
$1265,00
$9,857.00

$345.00
$620.00
$401.00
$285.00

Total: $32,705.00

GROSS INCOME $43,179.00
EXPENSES $32,705.00

NET INCOME $10,474.00

2
ANNE M GILTNER DATE

          Torrance Beach- Concession Stand

Financial Data 2010



Torrance Beach-Concession Stand

Financial Data 2012



Period:

Revenue:
Gross Sales 57,832.00$     
Less:  Sales Returns & Allowances  
Net Sales  

Cost of Goods Sold:
Beginning Inventory $
Add: Purchases $

Freight-in $ N/A
Direct Labor $
Indirect Expenses $

Less: Ending Inventory $
Cost of Goods Sold -21352

Gross Profit (Loss) $36,480

Expenses:
Advertising $ 173.00$          
Equiment/Goods purchase $ 6,300.00$       
Car & Truck Expenses $
Commissions & Fees $
Contract Labor (security) $  
Depletion $
Depreciation $ 11,090.00$     
Employee Benefit Programs $
Insurance $ 2,796.00$       
Interest (Mortgage & Others) $
Legal & Professional services $
Office Expenses $ 520.00$          
Pension & Profit Sharing-Plans $
Rent or Lease (vehicles,equip,property) $ 20,150.00$     
R&M $ 5,393.00$       
Operating Supplies $
Taxes & License $ 1,822.00$       
Travel, meals, & Entertainment $
Utilities $ 7,222.00$       
Wages $
Other Expenses, increase security deposit $ 899.00$          

Total expenses $ 56,365

Net Operating Income or (Loss) $  
Other Income:

Gain or (Loss) on Sales of Assets $
Interest Income $
Total Other Income $

Net Income or (Loss)   

-19885
I certify that the above is true and accurate

11/15/2013

Date

LOCATION: Manhattan

Jan 1, 2010 - December  31, 2010

Name

Income Statement/Profit & Loss Statement



Zuma Beach (Lot 5)-Concession Stand

Financial Data 2012

Zuma Beach (Lot 2)-Concession Stand

Financial Data 2012

Zuma Beach (Lot 2), and Zuma Beach (Lot 5)

Consolidated Financial Data 2012



Dockweiler Beach (Kilgore-Lot 2)-Bike & Skate Rentals

Financial Data 2011



!!!Spokes N Stuff Bicycle Shop
Profit & Loss

December 1, 2011 through May 31, 2012

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Income
Dockweiler Beach 19,875.00
Snacks 8,220.00

Total Income 28,095.00

Cost of Goods Sold
Snacks 6,165.00

Total COGS 6,165.00

Gross Profit 21,930.00

Expense
Bookkeeping 680.00
Insurance

Liability & Property 1,384.80
Work Comp 615.00

Inventory 1,730.00
Licenses & Permits 251.00
Payroll

Taxes 566.22
Wages 8,335.50

Repairs & Maintenance 222.75
Utilities 230.36

Rent 2,222.34

Total Expenses 16,237.97

Net Income 5692.03

Financial Data 2012
Dockweiler Beach (Kilgore - Lot 2)- Bike & Skate Rentals

   



Dockweiler Beach (Kilgore-Lot 2)-Bike & Skate Rentals

Financial Data 2012



Dockweiler Beach (Kilgore-Lot 2)-Bike & Skate Rentals

Financial Data 2013



Venice Beach-Bike & Skate Rentals

Financial Data 2011



Venice Beach-Bike & Skate Rentals

Financial Data 2012



Profit-Loss Summary
Windsports International Inc.

Dockweiler Beach Hang Gliding

12623 Gridley Street, Sylmar, CA 91342
818 367 2430

Profit and Loss Statement
Period: 1 ‘/01/11 -

‘ 1 /1 )

Less Returns

Gross Margin $60,800

Admin Expenses

Salaries / Wages $24,518

Pensions

Employee Benefits

Rent $3,831

Utilities $407

Auto Expense

Travl Expense / Ent $117

Other Expenses $19,571

State and ‘ocal tax/Lic. $2,223

Possessory Interest tax

Depreciation

Repairs $1,838

Total Bus. Expenses $52,505

Gross Sales $60,800

Profit From Operations $8,295.00

Dockweiler Beach (Bluff Lot)- Hang Gliding

Financial Data 2012



Dockweiler Beach (Bluff Lot)-Hang Gliding

Financial Data 2012
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Los Angeles County Department of Beaches and Harbors 
Invitation for Bids 

For Concession Services at County Owned and Operated Beaches and Burton Chace Park 
Projects That May Impact Beach Concessions 2014‐ 2024 

 
 
Malibu Surfrider  

• During the winter storms of 2005, sand erosion uncovered an underground tank structure.  The 
underground tank was a saltwater intake structure that was constructed in 1929 in connection 
with a swimming pool on the adjacent historical Adamson House property.  This project is to 
leave the tank in-place on the beach.  The tank will be filled with slurry to prevent collapse, 
sealed, and covered with beach sand.  Project start date mid-January 2014 with completion 
expected on March 2014. 

• Renovation of public restrooms and replace chain-link fence.  Project start date within the next 
10 years. 

 
Royal Palms 

• Replacement and upgrades to existing utility infrastructure.  Project start date within the next 
10 years. 

 
Burton Chace Park 

• Upgrade and Expansion of Park, including removal and relocation of existing concession 
building.  Project start date within the next 10 years. 

 
Dockweiler State Beach 

• Replacement and upgrades to existing utility infrastructure.  Project start date within the next 
10 years. 

• Construct sand wall and promenade along parking lots.  Project start date within the next 10 
years. 

• Expansion of RV Park.  Project start date within the next 10 years. 
 
Manhattan Beach 

• Replacement and upgrades to existing utility infrastructure; restrooms and concession building.  
Project start date within the next 10 years. 

 
Torrance Beach 

• Replacement and upgrades to existing utility infrastructure; restrooms and concession building.  
Project start date within the next 10 years. 

 
Will Rogers State Beach 

• Replacement and upgrades to existing utility infrastructure; restrooms and concession buildings.  
Project start date within the next 10 years. 

• Replacement of existing concession building at Chautauqua.  Project start date within the next 
10 years. 

 
Zuma Beach 

• Replacement of two concession buildings.  Project start date within the next 10 years. 
 
Venice Beach 

• Replacement and upgrades to existing utility infrastructure; restrooms and concession buildings.  
Project start date within the next 10 years. 

 



Concession Premises

Grill 
(Grill/Oven 

Range) tray holder refrigerator
Char 

Broiler
Deep 
Fryer Freezer

Ice Cube 
Dispenser

Salad To 
Refrigerator

Sandwich 
Preparation 

Tables
Coffee 
Maker

Burton Chace Park 1 1 1
Dockweiler Beach (Bluff Lot) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2
Manhattan Beach
Torrance Beach 1 2 2 1 1
Will Rogers (Chautauqua) 1 1 1 1 1 1
Will Rogers (Temescal) 1 1 1 2
Zuma (Lot 2)
Zuma (Lot 5)

The County believes that the trade fixtures listed below are in the Premises and may be used by Licensee during the License Term. The County has not 
inspected said trade fixtures, nor does it warrant or certify the availability or condition thereof. The list is not comprehensive. It is recommended that 

prospective Bidders inspect the Premises to determine the availablilty and condition of the trade fixtures prior to submitting a bid.

IFB Beach Concessions 2014
County-Owned Trade Fixtures



Invitation to Bids - 2014
Concession Services at County Owned and Operated

Beaches and Burton Chace Park

Answers to Frequently Asked Questions

1. Investigate costs of auto and building insurance premiums before submitting your bid.

a. Insurance coverage must be in effect continuously during the term of the License, including periods
when the concession is closed for the season.

b. Bidder must provide evidence of insurability with the bid.

2. Bidder must furnish a copy of all applicable licenses with the bid.

3. Licensee acknowledges conducting a personal inspection of the Premises and the trade fixtures, and
accepts them on an “As-Is” and “With All Faults” basis.

4. Understand the physical layout of Premises. Public access to beaches, traffic routes, bike lanes and
walkways cannot be impeded. Unless you have information to the contrary, assume the public is allowed to
use (i.e. sit and eat at concession patios).

5. To receive a scoring preference under the Local Small Business Enterprise Preference Program, the Bidder
must be certified by the Office of Affirmative Action compliance at the time the bid is submitted. Please
visit the website http://laosb.org and click on the link “Local Small Business Enterprise (SBE)” for further
information.

6. Licensee is responsible for adhering to all signage regulations. Burton Chace Park signage must be pre-
approved by the Design Control Board (DCB). All other concession premises some under the jurisdiction of
the California Coastal Commission regarding signage and the Beach Commission.

7. If you believe that a “Required Form” is not applicable to your Bid, we encourage you to submit the form with
a note attached stating your position.

8. Amendments to the IFB can be accessed by visiting our website at
http://beaches.lacounty.,gov/wps/portal/dbh/government/ and clicking on “Request for Proposals.” It is
recommended that you check the website prior to submitting bids.

9. Amendment No. 1 is currently available at our website.

10. Prior to submittal of a bid, prospective Bidders must register in the County’s WEbVen.

11. Licensee is required to provide services and shall be open for business every day from Memorial Day
Weekend through to Labor Day Weekend of each year during the License Term, including the County
recognized holidays Memorial Day, Independence Day, and Labor Day. The minimum daily hours of
operation during this period of time shall be from 10 a.m. to 5 p.m.

12. A bid must contain a cover page, a table of contents, and Forms 3 through 20.

13. Bidders’ questions will be compiled with appropriate answers and issued as an addendum to the IFB on our
website by November 27, 2013.

14. The deadline for receipt of bids is December 5, 2013, 3:0 p.m. (PST).

15. The Venice Beach concession premises are comprised of three separate locations.

16. Rents are adjusted each year by an index “Consumer Price Index-All Urban Consumers”, “Los Angeles-
Riverside-Orange County, CA”, “Rent of Primary Residence”.

17. Licensee shall pay all utilities and telephone expenses, including installation and hook-up.
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